2.0

3.0

4.1

4.2

Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees
AGENDA
Liberty Elementary School
Library

Adopt Agenda (Action Item)

This item is provided as an opportunity for trustees, through consensus, to approve,
re-sequence, or table agenda topics. In accordance with the Brown Act Requirements
effective July 1, 2008, if documents are distributed to board members concerning an agenda
item within 72 hours of a regular board meeting, at the same time the documents will be
made available for public inspection at the District Office located at 1771 E. Pacific Ave.
Tulare, CA 93274.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Brown Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, including receipt of the agenda and
documents in the agenda package in an alternate format, please contact the Liberty
Elementary School District Office at (559) 686-1675. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (28CFR35.102-35, 104 ADA Title II), and allow for the preparation of
documents in the appropriate alternate format.

Adjourn to Closed Session
The Board may adjourn to closed session to discuss matters of personnel security,
negotiations, student discipline, litigation, or other matters as authorized by the government
Code Section 3459.1, 5496.6 and 54967.6 and Ed Code Sections 35136 and 48913.
a. (Ed Code Section 35146, 48900) Student Discipline & Other Confidential
Student Matters.
b. (Gov. Code 54957) Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release
¢. Gov. Code 54956.9) Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government
Code section 54956.9, subdivision (d)(2) or (3)
d. Employment, resignations, transfers, etc. of Certificated and Classified
Personnel
e. (Gov. Code, 3549.1) Negotiations

Flag Salute

Roll Cali: Ronald Koetsier President
Diane Tanner Member
John Beaver Clerk
Jill White Member

Jonathon Thorpe Member




4.3

4.4

5.0

5.4

5.2

5.3

S.4

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Adjourned

Also in attendance for Closed and Open Session: Deanna Cardoza (Superintendent).

Board President — Opportunity for Board President to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.
a. Board President to announce Closed Session Items of Discussion.

Public Comments:

Those in the audience desiring to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda may
do so at this time. Each speaker is to have (3) three minutes to address the Board and make
a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question regarding matters related to
the school system. Please understand that the Board does not take action on non-agenda
items.

Information Items:
This item is provided for informational reports and will highlight district and student events
and successes.

Staff Reports - Opportunity for Liberty Elementary School Staff Members to comment or
report on any matters pertinent or of concern to the Board.

Principal — Opportunity for Principal to comment or report on any matters pertinent or of
concern to the Board.

Superintendent — Opportunity for Superintendent to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.

Reminder: Distribution 2022/2023 Statement of Economic Interests Form 700
Action Items:

These items are provided for Board information, discussion, and/or action.
Approval of Consent Agenda

*Minutes of Regular Board Meeting, January 10, 2023

*Payment of Warrants

Approval of Updated CSBA Board Policies for December 2022

Approval of 2023-2024 School Calendar

Approval of 2022 SARC

Approval of the Arts, Music and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant
2022 Expenditure Plan

Approval of the 2022-2023 Transportation Services Plan




2.0

3.0

4.1

4.2

Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Minutes
Liberty Elementary School
Library

230 p.m.

Adopt Agenda (Action Item)

This item is provided as an opportunity for trustees, through consensus, to approve,
re-sequence, or table agenda topics. In accordance with the Brown Act Requirements
effective July 1, 2008, if documents are distributed to board members concerning an agenda
item within 72 hours of a regular board meeting, at the same time the documents will be
made available for public inspection at the District Office located at 1771 E. Pacific Ave.
Tulare, CA 93274.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Brown Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, including receipt of the agenda and
documents in the agenda package in an alternate format, please contact the Liberty
Elementary School District Office at (559) 686-1675. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to
this meeting (28CFR35.102-35, 104 ADA Title II), and allow for the preparation of
documents in the appropriate alternate format.

Adjourn to Closed Session 5:30 p.m.
The Board may adjourn to closed session to discuss matters of personnel security,
negotiations, student discipline, litigation, or other matters as authorized by the government
Code Section 3459.1, 5496.6 and 54967.6 and Ed Code Sections 35136 and 48913.
a. (Ed Code Section 35146, 48900) Student Discipline & Other Confidential
Student Matters.
b. (Gov. Code 54957) Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release
¢. Gov. Code 54956.9) Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government
Code section 54956.9, subdivision (d)(2) or (3)
d. Employment, resignations, transfers, etc. of Certificated and Classified
Personnel
e. (Gov. Code, 3549.1) Negotiations

6:37 p.m. No Action Taken

Flag Salute

Reoll Call: Ron Koetsier President Preseni
John Beaver Clerk Present
Diane Tanner Member Present
Jonathon Thorpe Member Absent
Jill White Member Present

Also in attendance for Closed and Open Session: Deanna Cardoza (Superintendent).




4.3

4.4

5.0

S.1

5.2

5.3

S.4

5.5

6.0

6.1

6.2

Board President — Opportunity for Board President to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.
a. Board President to announce Closed Session Items of Discussion.

Public Comments:

Those in the audience desiring to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda may
do so at this time. Each speaker is to have (3) three minutes to address the Board and make
a brief statement, express his/her viewpoint, or ask a question regarding matters related to
the school system. Please understand that the Board does not take action on non-agenda
items.

Information Items:
This item is provided for informational reports and will highlight district and student events
and successes.

Staff Reports - Opportunity for Liberty Elementary School Staff Members to comment or
report on any matters pertinent or of concern to the Board. Renee Hovis reported that
Poetry and Prose will be coming up in March.

Superintendent — Opportunity for Superintendent to comment or report on any matters
pertinent or of concern to the Board.

Principal- Opportunity for Principal to comment or report on any matters pertinent or of
concern to the Board. Stesha Newkirk gave information regarding the upcoming LPTC
event Donuts with Grownups. She also reported Liberty Students participated in the Rural
School Spelling Bee and unfortunately did not place this year. A school wide Art Show is
currently in the planning stages. Lastly, she is currently working on the SPSA Plan.

First Reading on Updated CSBA December 2022 Board Policies

Liberty Elementary School District 2022-2023 Year 1 Outcome Mrs. Cardoza went over
with the Board all of the changes reflecting the outcome of LCAP year 1

Action Items:

These items are provided for Board information, discussion, and/or action.

Approval of Consent Agenda

*Minutes of Regular Board Meeting, December 14, 2021

*Payment of Warrants

Diane Tanner made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 2" made by Jill White
Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0 Abstain: 0 Absent:
Jonathan Thorpe Motion Carried

Approval of Annual Developer Fee Report 2021-2022

John Beaver made a motion to approve the 2021-2022 Annual Developer Fee Report 2"
made by Jill White Ayes: John Beaver, Ron Koetsier, Diane Tanner, Jill White Noes: 0
Abstain: 0 Absent: Jonathan Thorp Motion Carried

Adjournment: 7:07 p.m.




23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/26/2023 2:12:08PM

1/26/2023
2:12:08PM

Page 1 of 2
APY500

b3 FINAL *®F%
Batch No 300

Reference Invoice Audit
Yendor No  Vendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
000585  AT&T PV-230343  1/25/2023 ACCT#829065989 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $79.82 MonH, ) Y
Total Check Amount: s7082 ©rth Ay
000225  CARTOZIANS AIR PV-230336 1/13/2023 BP7701-NOV 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $3,750.00 umm
CONDITIONING M ond J
Total Check Amount: $3,750.00 D.vlva 5
000966  CASMEC PY-230345 1/25/2023 ORDER8203 010-40350-1-11100-10000-52000-0 $220.00 Tms Ve
Total Check Amount: $220.00 Woavicehs {
000857  De Lage Laden Financial Serv PV-230337 1/25/2023 ACCT#379893 010-00008-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $1,904.84 D w.w? fgm
O
Total Check Amount: %1,904.84 [N ‘ﬁ?m
000743  EnviroClean Sanitation Supply PV-230338 1/18/2023 0142253 010-00000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $1,069.51 . Nw‘? )
B =2 v
Total Check Amount: $1,069.51 IV &%
000165  HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT  PV-230354 11/3/2002 955744160/955766898 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $617.03 23
. ITas+.
Total Check Amount: $617.03 S m. m,
000953  JAIDEN MARTIN PV-230348 1/25/2023 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $26.22 22
L alt
Total Check Amount: $26.22 i &6 ﬁs %
000925  Kayla Pena PV-230346 1/25/2023 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $87.74 H AL
Total Check Amount: $87.74 Sl
000719  Lowes PV-230344 1/25/2023 82131341297054ACCT# 010-11000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $676.76 = PAR > »n ¥
Lowes 1/25/2023 82131341297054ACCT# 010-11000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 {$117.19) Su @. %
Total Check Amount: $559.57
000158  Lozano Smith,LLP PV-230350 1/11/2023 217979% 010-00000-0-00000-71000-58000-0 $655.20 § n\.m&; Aavice
Total Check Amount: $655.20
000501 MOBILE MODULAR PV-230355 1/24/2023 R236060 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $4,020.00 D 22

Total Check Amount:

K@&;I»?%

$4,020.00 .
P zg‘u



23 Ec.m_.g Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/26/2023 2:12:08PM

1/26/2023
2:12:08PM

Page 20f 2
APY500

Fak FINAL Kok
Batch No 300

Reference Invoice Audit
Vendor No Vendor Name Mumber Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
000357  Nancy Grimmius PV-230347 1/25/2023 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $38.74 s . %
Supd
Total Checlc Amount: $38.74 !
000060  Office Depot PV-230339 1/25/2023 ACCT#28265583 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $250.36 Msrm’“ 22
Suyg.
Total Check Amount: $250.36 ﬂ
00077t Roche Oit Inc. PV-230340 17182023 181027/181135 010-07230-0-00000-36000-43000-0 $673.27 @ Q&.@ 23
‘we
Total Check Amount: $673.27 '
Lo e ¢| 2
000659  Rosi Gutierrez PV-230353 1/26/2023 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 010-11000-0~11100-10000-43000-0 $186.55 <+ W@ i m;
S
Totat Check Amount: $186.55
000124  Small Sch Superintendent Assn PV-23034% 1/1/2023 LIBERTY ELEMENTARY 010-00000-0-00000-72000-53000-0 $335.00 Thea r.@ﬁv?ﬁ
Total Check Amount: $335.00
000689  Southern California Gas Co PV-230341 1/25/2023 19643697063ACCT # 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $16.27 i ﬁ .;.»,ii,@
.ty g
Total Check Amount: $16.27 & J
000695  Thomas Day PV-230342 1/15/2023 1115 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $400.00 ,ﬂ%cﬁ _fs f
IRTY
Total Check Amount: $400.00 Pl @
000696  UNWIRED BROADBAND, INC PV-230352 2/1/2023 1557831 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $299.99 Mo ,.ii b
UNWIRED BROADBAND, INC 2/1/2023 1557831 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $61.29 Dtlen u
Total Check Amount: $361.28
000493  Valley Expetec PV-230351 2/1/2023 A001207/208 010-00000-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $6,142.87 22
Valley Expetec 2/1/2023 AD01207/208 010-07200-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $5,156.00 Nw\ L
o v
Total Check Amount: $11,298.87 ’ N

.m::éw



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Vendor No  Vendor Name

Tulare County Office of Education 1/26/2023

12:38:21PM

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/26/2023 12:38:21PM

Reference
Number

Invoice
Date

PO # Invoice No

Separate
Check Account Code

Page 1 of L
APYS00

$oR FINAL %%

Batch No 300
Augit
Amount Flag EFT

Total District Payment Amount:

$26,550.27




23 Liberty Elementary School District 2 H 1/26/2023 Page i of 1
Tulare County @38 of Education  19:38e01PM 500
Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/26/2023 12:38:21PM
FA% BTMAL %
Batch No 300
Reference Invoice Separate Audit
Vendor No  VYendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
Batch No 300 Total Accounts Payable: $26,550.27

The School District hereby arders that payment be made to each of the above
vendors in the amounts indicated on the preceding Accounts Payable Final
totaling 26,550.27 and the County Office of Education transfer the amounts
from the indicated funds of the district to the Check Clearing Fund in order that
checks may be drawn from a single revolving fund (Education Code 42631 &
42634).

95 ) [ fesfavas
>:5%~@&EE Date / i haa
i
Fund Summary | Total

010 $26,550.27

Total $26,550.27




23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/12/2023 3:51:54PM

171272023
3:51:54PM

Page lof 3
APYS500

A FINAL %%

Batch No 298
Reference Invoice Audit
VYendor No Vendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
000964  ADVANCED DATA STORAGE INC PV-230319  12/22/2022 0158900 010-G0000-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $155.00 < bre odal 4.@.
Total Check Amount: $155,00
000585  AT&T PV-230306 1/11/2023 BAN#9391032124 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $146.08 %o ) Y
AT&T PV-230307 1/11/2023 BAN#9391057381 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $326.91 R gv,
AT&T PV-230308 1/11/2023 BAN#9391028846 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $240.74 »
Total Check Amount: $713.73
000687  BSK Associates PV-230324 1/12/2023 AGD0420/AG00418 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $220.00 Wi itmf
Total Check Amount: $220.00 Gaibin 3
000509  CASBO Pv-230325 1/9/2023 ORDER194512 (10-00000-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $395.00 HTra ' o N su
Total Check Amount; $395.00
000762  CITY OF TULARE PV-230309 12/31/2022 2519654001 010-11000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $834.40 u..g.m«.fm, ?.@
o0y Ag
Total Check Amount: $834.40 u
000797  CVIN/ VAST PV-230333 1/1/2023 41208 010-00000-0-00000-82000-59000-0 $195,00 Sfci.mwg
2
Total Check Amount: $195.00 Sell .?@
000857  De Lage Laden Financlal Serv PV-230326 1/12/2023 786891267 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $1,904.84 D WNWL
Pl
Total Check Amount: $1,904.84 RS RN ug%
000958  DEERE CREDIT SERVICES INC PV-230311 1/3/2024 2732780 010-00000-0-000G0-91000-74350-0 $505.02 G renth J
DEERE CREDIT SERVICES INC 1/3/2024 2732780 010-00000-0-00000-91000-74380-0 $170.52 G Diilia iu
Total Check Amount: $675.54
Swavier 3
000093  EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT Pv-230334 1/1/2023 ACCT#94238201 010-00000-0-00000-00000-95025-0 $4,575.63 G e
DEPARTM Dt "
Total Check Amount: %4,575.63
000225  GEOFFERY CARTOZIAN PV-230335 12/7/2022 DECEMBER 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $3,750.00 h ‘wwf )
PN LY
Total Check Amount; $3,75000 © § .vhga 3 d
000786  Ingram Band Supply LLC PV-230310  12/14/2022 B732 010-00000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $28.69 Mwus. ¢

.\m..zzu.



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

Accounts Payable Final Prelist - 1/12/2023 3:51:54PM

1/12/2023
3:51:54PM

Page 2 of 3
APY500

®E% FINAL *%%

Batch No 299
Reference Invoice Audit
Vendor No Vendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check >0nnc=n Code Amount Flag EFT
Total Check Amount: $28.69
000166  JORGENSEN COMPANY PV-230320 1/7/2023 6044930 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $522.00 & = ! 4
Total Check Amount: $522.00 s b
000965  JULIA MENDEZ PV-230323 1/6/2023 SUPPLIES 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $142.09 H?W ._M.: e
Total Check Amount: $142.09 v
000346  LANGE PLUMBING SUPPLY, INC PV-230312  12/20/2022 874005 010-00000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $33.77 A W .‘Vw.m
Total Check Amount: $33.77
000100  LINDER EQUIPMENT COMPANY PV-230313  12/28/2022 SAS23847/23848 010-07230-0-00000-36000-43000-0 $489.98 @W&? s} sgFion
Total Check Amount: $489.98
000501  MOBILE MODULAR PV-230329 1/1/2023 2369057 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $2,440.00 WA G%Nwm? z
Total Check Amount: $2,440.00 Battsa 3
000250  MORRIS LEVIN & SON PV-230322  12/6/2022 297960/297961 010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $3,569.42 [ inp &g +ie
MORRIS LEVIN & SON 12/6/2022 297960/297961 010-00000-0-D0Y00-82000-43000-0 $458.45 P tuwby LS
Total Check Amount: $4,027.87
000357  Nancy Grimmius PV-230314 1/4/2023 BASKETBALLS 010-11000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $80.54 = W{.«U.a
Total Check Amount: $80.54
000918  Perfect Care Landscape PV-230330 12/28/2022 17139 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $1,955.00 ﬁo& R %w., z
Total Check Amount: $1,955.00 Billea 5
000629  Pitney Bowes PV-230315  12/26/2022 3105887461 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $169.23 @uaydrey f
Total Check Amount: $168.23 mm. | Noad~
000297  RES-COM PV-230318  12/26/2022 2092168 010-00000-0-00000-82000-56000-0 $130.00 Fuod nié 1 Y]
Total Check Amount: $130.00 Bl 3
000064  SISC PV-230331  1/12/2023 CLIENT ID 71985 010-00000-6-00000-00000-95024-0 $66,747.80 G 23

Mead ki

Zrnsburame



23 Liberty Elementary School District

Tulare County Office of Education

1/12/2023
3:51:54PM

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/12/2023 3:51:54PM

Page3of3
APY500

Batch No 299

Reference Invoice Separate Ansdit
Yendor No Vendor Name Mumber Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code Amount Flag EFT
Total Check Amount: %66,747.80
000050  Southern California Edison PV-230328 1/12/2023 ACCT#700055215373 *  010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $8,075.50 ?M; +hi Vi
Bibeag
Total Check Amount: $8,075.50 :
000050  Southern California Edison PV-230327 1/12/2023 ACCT#700431744721 *  010-00000-0-00000-82000-55000-0 $1,201.62 Yo m".iw J
s s ey
Total Check Amount: $1,201.62 2
000288  Tulare County Office of Educ PV-230317 1/4/2023 231347 010-07200-0-00000-31400-58000-0 $2,076.16 =~ Tce ﬁﬂ\
C Pursd
Total Check Amount: $2,076.16
000071 US Bank PV-230318  12/22/2022 4246044555628050 *  (10-00000-0-11100-10000-43000-0 $406.52 MTes S .&m
US Bank 1212272022 4246044555628050 *  010-00000-0-00000-31400-43000-0 $9.19 M xnﬁ_@@i !
US Bank 1212212022 4246044555628050 *  (10-00000-0-00000-71000-43000-0 $14.99 M 21 ﬁ.p& w«i
US Bank 12/22/2022 4246044555628050 * 010-00000-0-00000-82000-43000-0 $14.06 M 10 w6 5e
US Bank 12/22/2022 4246044555628050 *  010-00000-0-00000-71000-58000-0 $£319.23 M3 Myﬁwwu
Total Check Amount: $764.06
000493  Valley Expetec PV-230332 14172023 20002118/20002119 010-07200-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $5,156.00 23
Valley Expetec 1/1/2023 Z0002118/Z0002119 010-00000-0-00000-72000-58000-0 $6,142.87 - Nwa Wl
WY -
Total Check Amount: $11,298.87 £ :”q%



23 Liberty Elementary School District Tulare Cou zz Office of Education w\ wm\ %MWM ﬁm%%«w %M 1

Accounts Payable Final PreList - 1/12/2023 3:51:54PM

Batch No 299
Audit

Amount Flag EFT

Reference Invoice Separate
Vendor No Vendor Name Number Date PO # Invoice No Check Account Code

Total District Payment Amount: $113,602.32




23 Liberty Elementary School District

VYendor No Vendor Name

Reference Invaoice
Kumber

Accounts Payable Final Prelist - 1/12/2023 3:51:54PM

= 174272023
Tulare County Office of Education 3:51:54PM

Separate

Date PO ¥ Invoice No . Check Account Code

Page lof 1
APYS500

b2 3 FINAL ¥k

Batch No 299
Audit

Amount Flag EFT

Batch No 289

Total Accounts Payable:

$113,602.32

Fund Summary

The School District hereby orders that payment be made to each of the above
vendors in the amounts indicated on the preceding Accounts Payable Final
totaling 113,602.32 and the County Office of Education transfer the amounts
from the indicated funds of the district to the Check Clearing Fund in order that

checks may be drawn from a single revolving fund {Fducation Code 42631 &
42634).

/w2023

Date ~ -

Total

010

$113,602.32

Total

$113,602.32




CSBA UPDATE CHECKLIST ~ December 2022

District Name: Liberty Elementary School District

Contact Name: Dr. Deanna Cardoza  Phone: (559) 686-1675 Email: dcardoza@liberty. k12.ca.us

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT
DATE
BP 0430 Comprehensive Local Plan for Special
Education
AR 0430 Comprehensive Local Plan for Special
Education
BP 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
AR 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan
BP 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan
AR 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan
BP 3250 Transportation Fees
AR 3230 Transportation Fees
AR 3260 Fees and Charges
BP 3460 Financial Reports and Accountability
AR 3460 Financial Reports and Accountability
BP 3515 Campus Security
AR 3515 Campus Security
AR 3516.2 Bomb Threats
BP 3540 Transportation
BP 51317 Weapons and Dangerous Instrument
AR 51317 Weapons and Dangerous Instrument




CSBA UPDATE CHECKLIST ~ December 2022

District Name: Liberty Elementary School District

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT
DATE
AR 51413 Health Examinations
BP 5142 Safety
AR 5142 Safety
AR 51422 Safe Routes to School Program
BP 51482 Before/After School Programs
AR 51482 Before/Alter School Programs
BP 51483 Preschool/Early Childhood Education
AR 51483 Preschool/Early Childhood Education
AR 6164.4 Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for}
Special Education i
Superintendent or designee
1771 E Pacific Ave, Tulare, CA
(559) 686-1675




District Name: Liberty Elementary School District

CSBA UPDATE CHECKLIST —~ December 2022

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT
DATE
BB 9220 Governing Board Elections
AND
AND
BB 9223 Filling Vacancies
BB 9323 Meeting Conduct




CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
December 2022

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations,
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly.

Board Policy 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) requiring the State Superintendent of Public Instruction
to make publicly available the special education funding each local educational agency (LEA) generates for
their Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA), and for the SELPA, to report to member LEA's the amount
of funding each LEA generates for the SELPA.

Administrative Regulation 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which extends the timeline for developing an
annual assurances support plan to July 1, 2027. A template for the annual assurances support plan will be
developed by CDE by July 1, 2026. Additional minor revisions as necessary for clarity.

Board Policy 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan
Policy updated to clarify language related to approval of the tactical response plan and add material regarding
the district's requirement to provide data to the California Department of Education pertaining to lockdown
or multi-option response drills conducted at district schools.

Administrative Regulation 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires, starting with the 2023-24 school
year, districts to include in the annual notification to parents/guardians information related to the safe storage
of firearms, and for certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat
to law enforcement. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1352, 2021) which authorizes
districts to request the Military Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration
Center (Cal-CSIC), to perform an independent security assessment of the district or an individual district
school and NEW LAW (AB 2355, 2022) which requires districts that experience a cyberattack, which
impacts more than 500 students or personnel, to report the cyberattack to Cal-CSIC. Additionally, regulation
updated to include in the optional list of comprehensive safety plan components (1) strategies aimed at
preventing potential incidents involving crime and violence on school campuses, (2) provision of safety
materials and emergency communications in language(s) understandable to parents/guardians, (3) procedures
for the early identification and threat assessment of, and appropriate response to, suspicious and/or
threatening digital media content, (4) district policy and/or plan related to pandemics, (5) communication
with parents/guardians regarding unification plans and necessity of cooperating with first responders, and (6)
continuity of operations procedures to ensure that the district's essential functions are not disrupted during an
emergency, to the extent possible,

Board Policy 0460 - Loeal Control and Accountability Plan

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which states, by January 31, 2025, an Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE) shall
completed by districts which are identified by the California Department of Bducation (CDE) as needing an
improvement plan. Additionally, policy is updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) requiring the LCAP
parent advisory committee to include at least a parent/guardian of currently enrolled students with disabilities.
Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 997, 2022) which requires, beginning July 1, 2024, districts
serving middle or high school students to include two students as full members of the existing parent advisory
committee or establish a student advisory committee to provide advice to the Board and the Superintendent
or designee.




Administrative Regulation 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022), which states Beginning July 1, 2025, if the district
1s identified by State Board of Education (SBE) as needing an improvement plan related to improvements in
services for students with disabilities, the Board shall adopt, and update on an annual basis, an Individual
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Addendum, based on the template adopted by SBE.

Board Policy 3250 - Transportation Fees
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which exempts a student classified as unduplicated
from paying a fee for transportation. The policy is also updated to include an optional waiver of transportation
fees for any group of district students, at the recommendation of the Superintendent. Also, the provision
regarding privacy moved from AR to BP.

Administrative Regulation 3250 - Transportation Fees
Regulation updated to add that bus passes shall be sold electronically, if available, and removed language
related to income eligibility that is no longer relevant. Moved provision regarding privacy to the Board Policy
and deleted if from Administrative Regulation.

Administrative Regulation 3260 - Fees and Charges
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which prohibits charging the parent of an
unduplicated student a fee for transportation, removed policy related to the sale or lease of personal computers
or internet appliances because of the increased use of technology in the modern classroom, changed
terminology from "homemaking" to "family and consumer sciences,” and reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021)
which requires a district to provide a free breakfast and lunch daily to any student who requests a meal.

Board Policy 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability
Policy updated to reflect the predictors of fiscal distress as identified by FCMAT in its 2019 "Indicators of
Risk or Potential Insolvency." Updated policy also revised to reflect the law more clearly with respect to
studies, reports, evaluations, and audits, that the County Superintendent of Schools is required or authorized
to consider when reviewing a district's budget.

Administrative Regulation 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability
Regulation updated to add a new section - "Lease Accounting," to reflect GASB Statement 87 which, starting
June 15, 2021, changed the rules for the financial reporting of governmental entities' leases, inchuding the
rules for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of such leases in financial statements.

Board Policy 3515 - Campus Security

Policy updated to include that the district regularly review current guidance regarding cybersecurity and
digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into the district's processes and procedures
related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure and the monitoring and response to suspicious
and/or threatening digital media content. Policy also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which
requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing
Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with
students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any
threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law
enforcement. Additionally, policy also updated to include that anyone who receives or learns of a health or
safety threat related to school or a school activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district
administrator, and that school site council's be included with other stakeholders when identifying appropriate
locations for the placement of surveillance cameras.

Administrative Regulation 3515 - Campus Security
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1352, 2021) which authorizes districts to request the Military
Department, in consultation with the California Cybersecurity Integration Center (Cal-CSIC), to perform an
independent security assessment of the district or an individual district school, NEW LAW (AB 2355, 2022)
which requires districts that experience a cyberattack, which impacts more than 500 students or personnel,
to report the cyberattack to Cal-CSIC, and NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires certificated and
classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing Board members, whose




duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades
6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat
of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement. Regulation also
updated to provide that monitoring suspicious and/or threatening digital media content be part of the campus
security plan and included in strategies to detect and intervene with school crime.

Administrative Regulation 3516.2 - Bomb Threats

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (P.L. 117-159) which requires the creation of a Federal
Clearinghouse on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices to serve as a federal resource to identify and
publish online practices and recommendations to improve school safety, and include that the district regularly
review current guidance regarding cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended
practices into the district's processes and procedures related to the protection of the district's network
infrastructure and the monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content.
Regulation also updated to move and amend material regarding staff training, include and align language
with information provided by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 906,
2022) which requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat
to law enforcement.

Board Policy 3540 - Transportation _
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 181, 2022) which authorizes a district to provide transportation
services by way of a joint powers agreement, a cooperative student fransportation program, or a consortium,
and which requires, as a condition of apportionment, a district to adopt a transportation plan that describes
the transportation services to be provided to certain student groups, as specified, by April 1, 2023 and update
the plan annually by April 1.

Board Policy 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments

Policy updated to (1) expand the concept of district provided transportation, (2) reflect NEW LAW (SB 906,
2022) which requires certificated and classified employees of the district, and other school officials such as
Governing Board members, whose duties bring the employee or other school official in contact on a regular
basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part of a middle school or high school, who are alerted to or
observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat
to law enforcement, (3) move language regarding student suspension and expulsion in order to keep related
content together, and (4) add language regarding staff training to align with staff responsibilities to report
potential homicidal acts. Regulation also updated to add headings for the Options regarding tear gas or tear
gas weapons, and to emphasize that for districts that allow students to bring tear gas of tear gas weapons to
school, the student needs to either be accompanied by, or have the written consent, of a parent/guardian.

Administrative Regulation 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments
Regulation updated to expand the list of prohibited weapons and dangerous instruments to include additional
items that are listed in law.

Administrative Regulation 5141.3 - Health Examinations

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2329) which authorizes districts to enter into a memorandum
of understanding with a nonprofit eye examination provider to provide eye examinations and eyeglasses to
students at a school site. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 97) which requires that
beginning on or after January 1, 2023, districts make Type 1 diabetes materials developed by CDE available
to parents/guardians when student is first enrolled in elementary school or as part of certain notifications.
The first note was changed to a Cautionary Note and updated to clarify that the obligation to perform specified
mandated activities is relieved any year that the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement.

Board Policy 5142 - Safety
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (P.L. 117-159) which requires the creation of a Federal Clearinghouse
on School Safety Evidence-Based Practices to serve as a federal resource to identify and publish online




practices and recommendations to improve school safety, and include that the district regularly review current
guidance regarding cybersecurity and digital media awareness and incorporate recommended practices into
the district's processes and procedures related to the protection of the district's network infrastructure and the
monitoring and response to suspicious and/or threatening digital media content.

Administrative Regulation 5142 - Safety

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 906, 2022) which requires certificated and classified
employees of the district, and other school officials such as Governing Board members, whose duties bring
the employee or other school official in contact on a regular basis with students in any of grades 6-12, as part
of 2 middle school or high school, who are alerted to or observe any threat or perceived threat of a homicidal
act, to immediately report the threat or perceived threat to law enforcement, and add language regarding staff
responsibilities and training to align with requirement to report potential homicidal acts. Regulation also
updated to add language that anyone who receives or leams of a health or safety threat related to school or a
school activity is encouraged to report the threat to a school or district administrator, reflect NEW LAW (AB
2028, 2022) which authorizes the Board of an elementary, intermediate, junior high, or high school to assist
local law enforcement, nonprofit associations or organizations such as the Girls Scouts, Boys Scouts, and
parent-teacher associations, and public agencies that provide safety instruction related to using electric,
motorized, or nonmotorized bicycles and scooters, to provide such safety instruction to district students, and
NEW LAW (AB 1946, 2022) which requires the Department of the California Highway Patrol to develop,
and post on its web site, by September 1, 2023, statewide safety and training programs based on evidence-
based practices for users of electric bicycles, including general riding safety, emergency maneuver skills,
rules of the road, and laws pertaining to electric bicycles.

Administrative Regulation 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2028, 2022) which authorizes the Governing Board of an
elementary, intermediate, junior high, or high school to provide time and facilities to specified agencies that
offer bicycle, scooter, electric bicycle, motorized bicycle, or motorized scooter safety instruction, and NEW
LAW (AB 1946, 2022) which requires the Department of the California Highway Patrol to develop, by
September 1, 2023, statewide safety and training programs based on evidence-based practices for the use of
electric bicycles, including general riding safety, emergency maneuver skills, rules of the road, and laws
pertaining to electric bicycles.

Board Policy 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs
Policy updated to clarify that it applies to expanded learning opportunities beyond the regular school day,
including before-school, after-school, summer, vacation, and/or intersessional programs and to reflect NEW
LAWS (AB 181, 2022 and AB 185, 2022) which updates the Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO)
program. requirements for the 2022-23 school year and forward. Detailed information regarding various
program collaboration requirements moved to AR.

Administrative Regulation 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs

Regulation updated to include definitions of "offer access" and "provide access" in regard to Expanded
Learning Opportunities (ELO) programs. Detailed information regarding program collaboration
requirements moved to Regulation from BP. Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 181, 2022 and
AB 185, 2022) which updates the ELO program requirements for the 2022-23 school year and forward,
including requirements for the district to offer access to BLO programs based on the district's prior fiscal year
local control funding formula unduplicated pupil percentage. Regulation also updated to clarify that district
that receive funds for classroom-based instructional programs that serve grades TK-6 cannot opt out of the
ELO program funding, pursuant to California Department of Education's "Expanded Learning Opportunities
Program FAQs." Regulation also updated to reflect requirement that ELO programs are required to offer a
nutritional snack, meal, or both and to reflect California Department of Education guidance that ELO
programs do not have an attendance requirement and to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1380, 2022) which
renumbered The California Prekindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant Program, Education Code
8251.5 t0 8322.




Board Policy 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 210, 2022, AB 185, 2022 and SB 1047, 2022) to revise and
update requirements for California State Preschool Programs (CSPP), including requirements related to dual
language learners, children with exceptional needs, and enrollment data collection and reporting. Policy also
updated to reflect CSPP-specific NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2022, No. 26).

Administrative Regulation 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAWS (AB 210, 2022, AB 185, 2022, AB 321, 2022, and SB 1047,
2022) which revised enrollment criteria, priorities, and requirements for California State Preschool Programs
(CSPP). Sections of the regulation affected inchude "Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Part-Day CSPP
Programs" and "Eligibility and Enrollment Priorities for Full-Day CSPP Programs,” which were reorganized
and revised to comply with law. Other updated sections are "Minimum Hours/Days of Operation” and
“Staffing." Regulation was also updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2806, 2022) with new requirements
related to expulsion/unenrollment and/or suspension from a CSPP Program based on behavior. Regulation
also updated with CSPP-specific NEW STATE REGULATIONS (Register 2022, No. 26).

Administrative Regulation 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 188, 2022), requiring each district to designate a main point
of contact for coordinating and completing the transition of a child and family from Part C (Early
Intervention Program for Infants and Toddlers with Disabilities) to Part B (Assistance for Children with
Disabilities) of IDEA.

Board Bylaw 9220 - Geverning Board Elections
Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2584, 2022), by adding a new section - "Recalling a Board
Member." Updated Bylaw also revised "Election Process and Procedure” section to reflect NEW LAW (SB
1061, 2022) regarding the requirement that any petition for a special election to fill 2 Board vacancy include
the county election official's estimate of the cost of conducting the special election.

Board Bylaw 9223 - Filling Vacancies
Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1061, 2022), by adding a new note and body paragraph at the end
of the "Provisional Appointments" section. Updated Bylaw also reflects New Attorney-General Opinion
on how a vacancy is to be filled when a district's trustee areas have been revised or election method has
changed from "at-large" to "by-trustee area,” since the Board member whose term is to be completed was
last elected. The Bylaw also updated to rearrange the Items in "Timelines for Filling a Vacancy" and to
revise as necessary for clarity.

Board Bylaw 9323 - Meeting Conduct
Bylaw Updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1100, 2022) which authorizes the Board President to remove an
individual for disrupting a Board meeting, establishes a procedure for warning the individual prior to their
removal, and defines "dismpting" and "true threat of force.”

MINOR REVISION;
Board Policy 3260 - Fees and Charges

Policy updated to include reference to CDE Fiscal Management Advisory 22-01, Summer School, Third
Parties, Tuition Fees, and updates reference to CDE FMA 20-01, Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges.




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a free appropriate public education to all
individuals with disabilities, aged 3 to 21 years, who reside in the district.

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall serve as a Special Education
Local Plan Area (SELPA) pursuant to Education Code 56195.1.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a local plan for the education of individuals with disabilities
residing in the district. The plan shall be approved by the Board and submitted to the county office of
education and the Superintendent of Public Instruction. (SPI). (Education Code 56195.1, 56195.3)

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall participate as a member of a
multi-district Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) pursuant to Education Code 56195.1.




The district shall enter into agreements with other members of the SELPA in accordance with Education
Code 56195.1 and 56195.7. Consistent with these agreements, the district shall adopt policies governing
the programs and services it operates. (Education Code 56195.8)

The Superintendent or designee shall work with the other members of the SELPA to develop a local plan
for the education of individuals with disabilities. The plan shall be approved by the Board and the other
members of the SELPA, and shall be submitted to the county office of education and the Superintendent
of Public Instruction:SPl, (Education Code 56195.1, 56195.3)

In order to meet the needs of individuals with disabilities, the district shall participate as a member of a
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) with other districts and the county office of education
pursuant to Education Code 56195.1.

The district shall enter into agreements with other members of the SELPA in accordance with Education
Code 56195.1 and 56195.7. Consistent with these agreements, the district shall adopt policies governing
the programs and services it operates. (Education Code 56195.8)

The Superintendent or designee shall work with the other members of the SELPA to develop a local plan
for the education of individuals with disabilities. The plan shall be approved by the Board and the other
members of the SELPA, and shall be submitted to the Superintendent of Public Instruction.SPL
(Education Code 56195.1)

accordance with Education Code 56836,148.

The local plan shall be reviewed at least once every three years and updated as needed to ensure the
information contained in the plan remains relevant and accurate. The local plan shall be updated
cooperatively by a committee of representatives of special and regular education teachers and
administrators selected by the groups they represent and with participation by parent/guardian members
of the community advisory committee, or parents/guardians selected by the community advisory




committee, to ensure adequate and effective participation and communication. (Education Code

56195.9)

Special education programs and services shall be reviewed on an ongoing basis. The results of such
evaluations shall be used to identify and correct any program deficiencies.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California $5691

All rights reserved,

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject

matter of the policy.

State
5 CCR 3000-30892

Ed. Code 56000-56001
Ed. Code 56020-56035
Ed. Code 56040-56046
Ed. Code 56048-56050
Ed. Code 56055

Ed. Code 56060-56063
Ed. Code 56170-56177
Ed. Code 56190-56194
Ed. Code 56195-56195.10
Ed. Code 56205-56208
Ed-Code 56213

Ed. Code 5621356211-56214

Ed. Code 56240-56245
Ed. Code 56300-56385
Ed. Code 56440-56447.1

Ed. Code 56500-56508
Ed. Code 56520-5652556524

Description
Regulations governing special education

Education for individuals with exceptional needs
Definitions

General provisions

Surrogate parents

Foster parents

Substitute teachers in special education
Children enrolled in private schools

Community advisory committees

Local plans

Local plan requirements

Special education local plan

Special education local plan areas with small or sparse
populations

Staff development
Identification and referral; assessment, instructional planning

Programs for individuals between the ages of three and five
years

Procedural safeguards, including due process rights

Behavioral interventions




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus
where they are free from physical and psychological harm. The Board is fully committed to maximizing
school safety and to creating a positive learning environment that includes strategies for violence
prevention and high expectations for student conduct, responsible behavior, and respect for others.

The school site council at each district school shall develop a comprehensive school safety plan relevant
to the needs and resources of that particular school. New school campuses shall develop a safety plan
within one year of initiating operations. (Education Code 32281, 32286)

The school safety plan shall take into account the school's staffing, available resources, and building
design, as well as other factors unique to the site.

u

The Superintendent or designee shall oversee the development of a districtwide comprehensive safety
plan that is applicable to each school site. (Education Code 32281)




The comprehensive safety plan(s) shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 of each year and forwarded
to the Board for approval. (Education Code 32286, 32288)

The Board shall review the comprehensive safety plan(s) in order to ensure compliance with state law,
Board policy, and administrative regulation and shall approve the plan(s) at a regularly scheduled meeting.

By October 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the California Department of
Education (CDE) of any schools that have not complied with the requirements of Education Code 32281.
(Education Code 32288)

Tactical Response Plan

Notwithstanding the process described above, any portion of a comprehensive safety plan that addresses
tactical responses to criminal incidents that may result in death or serious bodily injury at the school site,
including steps to be taken to safeguard students and staff, secure the affected school premises, and
apprehend the criminal perpetrator(s), shall be developed by district administrators in accordance with
Education Code 32281. In developing such strategies, district administrators shall consult with law
enforcement officials and with representative(s) of employee bargaining unit(s), if they choose to
participate.

When reviewing the tactical response plan, the Board may meet in closed session to confer with law
enforcement officials and approve the tactical response plan, provided that any vote to approve the
tactical response plan is announced in open session following the closed session. (Education Code
32281)

Aeeess to Safety Plan(s) Access and Reporting

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that an updated file of all safety-related plans and materials
is readily available for inspection by the public. (Education Code 32282)

However, those portions of the comprehensive safety plan that include tactical responses to criminal
incidents shall not be publicly disclosed.

43




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

The Governing Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe and secure campus free
from physical and psychological harm and desires to protect them from the dangers presented by
firearms and other weapons.

Possession of Weapons

The Board prohibits any student from possessing weapons, imitation firearms, or other dangerous
instruments, as defined in law and administrative regulation, in school buildings, on school grounds er
buses, when using district provided transportation, at school-related or school-sponsored activities away
from school, or while going to or coming from school.

If a student is in possession of a prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument which
creates a threat or perceived threat of a homicidal act, any emplovee or other school official who is
alerted fo or observes such threat shall immediately report the threat to law enforcement.

Under the power granted to the Board to protect the safety of students, staff, and others on district
property and to maintain order and discipline in the schools, any school employee is authorized to
confiscate any prohibited weapon, imitation firearm, or dangerous instrument from any student on school
grounds.

121




The principal or designee shall notify law enforcement authorities when any student possesses a
firearm, explosive, or other prohibited weapon or dangerous instrument without permission, sells or
furnishes a firearm, or commits any act of assault with a firearm or other weapon. (Education Code
48902; Penal Code 245, 626.9, 626.10; 20 USC 7961)

Unless hefshea student has obtained prior written permission as specified below, a student possessing or ‘
threatening others with any weapon, dangerous instrument, or imitation firearm shall be subject to
suspension and/or expulsion in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulations.

Al staff shall be made aware of their responsibilities regarding the reporting of potential homicidal acts to
law enforcement, and receive training in the assessment and reporting of such threats.

Advance Permission for Possession of a Weapon for Educational Purposes

The parent/guardian of a student who desires to possess a firearm, imitation firearm, or other prohibited
weapon on school grounds for an educational purpose shall submit a written request to the principal, at

least five school days in advance of the planned possession; subsmit a written request to the principal
which explains the planned use of the weapon and the duration: The student shall alse submit, together
with a written explanation from the staff person responsible for the school-sponsored activity or class.

The principal may grant permission for such possession when he/she determines that itit is determined
that possession of a firearm, imitation firearm, or other prohibited weapon on school grounds is necessary
for a school-sponsored activity or class or as part of the educational program. Factors that shall be
considered include, but are not limited to, the planned use of the weapon, the duration and location of
the planned use, whether an audience is expected, and any perceived adverse effects to the safety and
well-being of students or staff. If the principal grants such permission, he/she shall provide the student
and staff person shall be provided with a written explanation regarding any limitations and the
permissible duration of the student's possession.

When the principal or designee grants permission, he/she shall take all necessary precautions shall be
taken to ensure the safety of all persons on school grounds and the safe keeping of the weapon, 129




~ including, but not limited to, inspecting a firearm to verify that no live ammunition is present. Any
permitted weapon alewed shall be stored in a locked vehicle or in an appropriate, locked container
before and after its authorized use.

AAny student granted permission to possess a weapon may be suspended and/or expelled if hedshe
possesses or uses the weapon is possessed or used inappropriately.

Possession of Pepper Spray

Districts that allow students to bring tear gas or tear gas weapons)

When accompanied by a parent/guardian or with the written consent of a parent/guardian, students age
16 or older may legally possess tear gas or tear gas weapons such as pepper spray for the purpose of self-
defense. However, such students shall be subject to suspension and/or expulsion if they use such items
are used inappropriately or for any purpose other than self-defense.

. (Districts that prohibit students from bringing tear gas or tear gas weapons)

To prevent potential misuse that may harm students or staff, students are prohibited from carrying tear
gas or tear gas weapons such as pepper spray on campus or at school activities.

Reporting of Dangerous Objects

The Board encourages students to promptly report the presence of weapons, injurious objects, or other
suspicious activity to school authorities. The identity of a student who reports such activity shall remain
confidential to the extent permitted by law.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies designed to facilitate student reporting of the
presence of injurious objects on school grounds, such as tip hotlines, electronic transmissions, or other
methods that preserve the student's anonymity. Incident reports and records shall not identify the
student who reported the possession. The Superintendent or designee alse shall also inform staff,
students, and parents/guardians that students who report the presence of injurious objects on school
campuses are to be protected and their identity shielded.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.
123




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Definitions

Expanded learning opportunities means before school, after school, summer, er ntersesstonvacation,
and/or intersessional learning programs that focus on developing the academic, social, emotional,
and physical needs and interests of students through hands-on, engaging learning experiences.
Expanded learning opportunities does not mean an extension of instructional time, but rather,
opportunities to engage students in enrichment, play, nutrition, and other developmentally
appropriate activities. (Education Code 8482.1, 46120)

Offer access, with regard to an Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) program, means to recruit,
advertise, publicize, or solicit through culturally and linguistically effective and appropriate
communication channels. (Education Code 456120)

Provide access, with regard to an ELO program, means to register or enroll a studentinan ELO
program, {(Education Code 46120)

Unduplicated student means a student enrolled in a district who is either classified as an English
tearner, eligible for a free or reduced-price meal, or is a foster youth. (Education Code 42238.02,
46120)

Grades KTK-9

172




The district's After School Education and Safety (ASES) program or 21st Century Community
Learning Center (21st CCLC) program shall serve students in any of grades KTK-9 as the district
may determine based on local needs. (Education Code 8482.3, 8484.7, 8484.75, 8484.8)

The district's 21st CCLC program shall primarily serve students in Title | schoolwide programes.
(Education Code 8484.8; 20 USC 7173)
The district's ELO program shall serve students in grades TK-6. (Education Code 46120)

The district's programs shall be planned through a collaborative process that includes

parents/guardians, students, and representatives of participating schools, governmental agencies,
including city and county parks and recreation departments, local law enforcement, community
organizations, and the private sector. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may include
other stakeholders in such collaborative process. (Education Code 8482.5, 8484.75, 46120)

Fhe distriet's Expanded Learning Oppeortunities (ELO) program shall serve students in grades TK-6-
For the 2024-22For the 2022-23 school year, the district shall offer access to ELO programs to all
unduplicated students in grades TK-6 and provide access to such programs to at least 50 percent of
enrolled unduplicated students. Commeneing with the 2022-23 scheol year the district shall offer
M%eﬂ%mgm%s%m%&@wﬁaﬂéwwawﬁmwﬁeé%@aﬁy
student whose parent/guardian requests placerment in a program: -(Education Code 46120)

173




Commencing with the 2023-24 school year, the district shall offer access to the ELO program to all
classroom-based students in grades TK-6. The district shall provide access to any student whose
parent/guardian requests placement in an ELO program.

The district shall offer access to the ELO program to all classroom-based unduplicated students in
grades TK-6. The district shall provide access to any unduplicated student whose parent/guardian
requests placement in an ELO program.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the plan to provide access to full-day learning
programs the year before kindergarten addresses the needs of children and their families as
specified in BP 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten. (Education Code 8284.58322)

The district’'s ASES, 21st CCLC, and ELO program(s) shall be operated in accordance with the
following:

174




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 5148.2: Before/After School Programs Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date; 11/01/2006 I I.astRevisﬁ Date: 12/01/20242022 ) LastRQViﬁwed
Date: 12/01/20242022 ;

161




regular school andfer after-school enrichment eregramsg_y that support the regular educatlon
program in a supervised environment. In order to increase academic achievement of participating
students, the content of such programs shall be coordinated with the district's vision and goals for
student learning, local control and accountability plan, curriculum, and academic standards.

CSBA NOTE: The fol!owmg paragraph reﬂects a requirerent for requrrements related to
coﬂaborattve planmng for be%hthe programs offered by the district, The ASES Qrogram (Education
Code 8482 5) aaeiL ASSETs Qrogram (Educatlon Code 8422). ) let CCLC eregramsmas%be
develefaeé mprogram (Educatton Code 8484.75). “and ELO program (Educatron Code 46120) have
different collaboratnon Wrth the seheeiés) the studea#.s attend; but collaberation’ W;%h ether entmes '
is atregusrements, see ‘the éserenea of the é&stﬁet— Qrst—ﬂets offering. enly 215% QG!:G eragrams

gy revise the ﬁeuewfng paragraph te reﬂeet drsﬁerret praet&eaccompanvmg admmrstratwe
eguiauo , e , : ,

Fhe district'sEach program offered by the districtshall be planned through a collaborative process
governmental agencies including city and county parks and recreation departments; localas

required by law enfercement; community organizations; and; if appropriate; the private sector:,
(Education Code 8422, 8482.5, 8484.75, 46120)

CSBA NOTE The followmg optlona! paragraph may be revssed to reﬂect d:stnct practlce e
Pursuant to Educatxon Co,de 120~ as aédeébyAB 4_—39 d;stncts are requrred to pnontlze ELO

may be avadable‘m, vhe comrnunlty, (4) contmue or expand exrstmg gran’cs and (5) for Zist CCLC
programs, prov:de year—round expanded Ieammg programming. Fora further descrtptron of
competltrve pnor;ty for fundmg, see the Cahforma Department of Educatlon 5 (CDE) "21st CCLC

and ASSETs FAQs" and "Request for Apphca’crons for P%egrams Preiaesmg %e Senfe Hrgh Seheel
St—tféeﬁ%s-ﬂz{st CCLL & ASSETSZ e : ,

To the extent feasible, the district shall give priority to establishing befere~expanded learning
opportunities beyond the regular school andfer after-school pregramsday in low-performing
schools and/or programs that serve low-income and other at-risk students,

162




Any expanded learning opportunities, including but not limited to After School Education and
Safety Program (ASES), 21st Century Community Learning Center Program (21st CCLC), 21st
Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens Program (ASSETS), erExpanded
Learning Opportunities Program (ELO) or any other program to be established pursuant to
Education Code 8421, 8482.3 or, 8484.75, or 46120, shall be approved by the Board and the

principal of each participating school.

CSBA NOTE The fo!lowmg optlonal paragraph is appl;cable to all ] programs Pursuant to
Educat;on Code 8483 4 (apphcable to beth ASES aﬂé Zist CCLC and vELVO Qrogram ) the

adm:nnstrattvé""g, oh Adtstr t;‘oﬁ‘ermg an ASSETS program must establlsh lts expectatlons
for staff quahﬁcat!onﬂ_;, B : AT LN fete

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all staff who directly supervise students in the
district's before-school and/or after-school programexpanded learning opportunity programs
possess appropriate knowledge and experience. As needed, staff and volunteers shall receive
ongoing training related to their job responsibilities.

Eaeh Each before-school, after-school, summer, vacation or intersessional expanded learning
opportunity program shall include academic and enrichment elements in accordance with law and
administrative regulation. In addition, each program may include support services that reinforce
the educational component and promote student health and well-being.

No fee shall be charged for participation in the program.

A family fee may be charged to participating families based on the actual cost of services,

CSBA NOTE The followmg paragraph is for use by dsstncts se!ectmg Optton 2 that offer an :

watve or reduce the ees for famlhes thh students Who are ehgible for free or reduced pnce '
meals. - e : : :

However, for the ASSETs program, a family fee shall be waived or reduced for families with
students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals. (Education Code 8422)

163




CSBA NOTE The followmg paragraph is for use by districts se!ectmg Optlon 2 that offer an ASES,
21st CCLC program and/or ELO program and may be modified to reflect program( ) offered by
the’ drstnct Pursuant 1o Educatron Code 8482 6 a5 ameﬁded by AB %39 famrly fees may‘ not be
charged for: these pr» rams for a student who is ehgrble for free or reduced prrce meal orif the :
district knows the participating student is a homeless youth or in foster ”re,' In addltron"a e
program that charges ( J fees rs requrred to schedule fees on a shdmg scale that cons;ders famlly
income and ability topay. S : :

For ASES, 21st CCLC, and/or Expanded Leatning Opportunities programs, no fee shall be

charged for a student who is eligible for free or reduced-price meals, or a student who the district
knows is a homeless youth or in foster care. In addition, family fees shall be calculated on a sliding
scale that considers family income and ability to pay. (Education Code 8482.6, 46120)

CSBA NOTE LThe remamder of thrs pohcy rs for use by drstrlcts that selected erthervOptrOn 1 or 2

Eligible students who are 11 or 12 years of age shall be placed in a before-school or after-school
program, if and when available, rather than subsidized child -care and development services.
During the time that the before-school or after-school program does not operate, such students
may be provided the option of enrolling in child -care and development services in accordance with
the enrollment priorities established in AR 5148 - Child Care and Development. (Welfare and
Institutions Code 10273)

academrc meésure : cludmg gre deé and course comp!etron) Wlth the operator of an after—school
program with whrch the drstrrct has a contract that includes a conﬁdentrahty agreement. The

164




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Board Member Qualifications

Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if he/shethe
person is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district or, if applicable,
the trustee area, a registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office. Any person who
has been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, embezzlement or
theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such crime, under California law or
the law of another state, the United States of America, or another country, is not eligible to be a
candidate for office or elected as a Board member except when he/shethe person has been granted a
pardon in accordance with law, (Education Code 35107; Elections Code 20)

A district employee elected to the Board shall resign histherfrom district employment before being sworn
in or shall have histherthe employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office.
{Education Code 35107)

| | Cal €5

The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board members. The
Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with information that will enable them to
understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board member, including information

238




regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all
candidates with the county election official's contact information and general information about school
programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities.

Recalling a Board Member

A Board member may be recalled as permitted by Elections Code 11000, Proponents of a recall are

required to serve, file, and publish or post a notice of intention to circulate the recall petition and to
comply with other applicable law and formalities and county elections official directives. The petition,

to include an estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, as determined by the county
elections official, in consultation with the district,

Within 14 days after the meeting at which the Board receives a certificate of sufficiency of signatures on

a recall petition from the county elections official, the Board shall order an election to be held to
determine whether the Board member named in the petition shall be recalled. The election shall be held
not less than 88, nor more than 125, days after the date that the Board orders the election. However, the
election may be conducted within 180 days after the issuance of the Board'’s order to consolidate the
election with a regularly scheduled election.

Recall elections shall be conducted in accordance with Elections Code 11381-11386.

Consolidation of Elections

To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board elections with
the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance with Elections Code 1302.

239




In addition, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewide election date results in
a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average local turnout for the
previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to consolidate Board elections with
statewide elections. The district shall meve its election to the next state statewide election date; unless
the Board has adopted a plan by January 1; 2018 to consolidate Board elections not later than the
November 8; 2022 statewide general election: (Elections Code 14051, 14052)

In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board shall adopt a
resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not later than 240 days prior to
the date of the currently scheduled district election. (Elections Code 10404.5)

Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, the terms of
office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next applicable election.

{Elections Code 10404.5)

Elections Process and Procedures

Seci

The district is divided into trustee areas and each trustee area shall be represented by a Board member
who resides in and is elected by voters residing within that trustee area. Trustee areas shall be balanced
by population as required by state and federal law.

Prior to March 1 following the year in which the results of each decennial federal census are released, the
Board shall adjust the boundaries of the district's trustee areas based on population figures as validated
by the Population Research Unit of the Department of Finance. (Education Code 5019.5)

240




Board members may reside anywhere within the district's boundaries and shall be elected by all voters in
the district.

Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that he/shethe Board member represents but
shall be elected by all voters in the district.

To ensure ongoing compliance with the California Voting Rights Acts, the Board may review the district’s
Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due to changes in the
district's population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group composition. The review shall
be based on the Superintendent or designee's report to the Board after the release of each decennial
federal census.

HWhen the district’s election method is fo be changed, the Board determines that a change s neecessapy

# shall hold public hearings in accordance with Elections Code 10100 before adopting a resolution at an

241




open meeting specifying the change(s), and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019, obtain
approval from the county committee on school district organization having jurisdiction over the district.

The election method or trustee-area boundaries in effect at the beginning of a Board member's term shall
be used when any vacancy that occurs during that term is to be filled, even if, during the term, the district
has adopted "by-trustee area” election method or trustee area boundaries have been adjusted.

Any petition for a special election ordered pursuant to Education Code 5091 shall contain the county

election official's estimate of the cost of conducting the special election, expressed on a per-student
basis. {Education Code 5091)

Campaign Conduct

All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, county,
state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and expenditures.

242




A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the purpose of
seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for those seeking election to
the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates who are qualified pursuant to Education
Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or political preference. (Government Code 85300)

1P

In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's confidence in the
Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to the principles in the Code of
Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440,

Statement of Qualifications

On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or histher
designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the county elections
official describing both of the following: (Elections Code 10509)

1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if any, are
for the balance of an unexpired term

2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of qualifications
pursuant to Elections Code 13307

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the
voter’s pamphlet. Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words. {Elections Code
13307)

Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for inclusion in the

voter's pamphlet. {Elections Gode 4330674

GCandidates for the Beard may submit a candidate stotement to the elections official for
inelusion in the veter's pamphlet: Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 400 words.
{Elections Code 13307)

243




When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a candidate for
the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for inclusion in the mailed
voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for electronic distribution.

The district shall pay the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, and/or electronically distributing
candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307.

The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or electronically
distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a condition of having
candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's pamphlet, the district may
require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these costs to the district in advance pursuant
to Elections Code 13307.

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections

244




the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and
place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that
time shall determine the winner by lot. (Education Code 5016)

Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been elected to
the Board, the Board shall schedule a runoff election in accordance with law. (Education Code 5016)

Before each election, the Board shall decide whether to resolve a potential tie by lot or by a runoff
election. If the Board has decided to resolve a tie by lot, the Board shall, immediately after the election,
notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and place where the candidates or their
representatives should appear before the Board. The Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot.
If the Board has decided to resolve a tie with a runoff election, the Board shall schedule the runoff
election in accordance with law. (Education Code 5016)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description
CA Constitution Article 2, Section 2 Voters; qualifications

CA Constitution Article 7, Section 7 Conflicting offices
CA Constitution Article 7, Section 8 Disqualification from office

Ed. Code 1006 Prohibition against school district employees serving on
county board of education

245




SI{M|T|W |Th,; F [S
1
5 6 |7 8
12 713§ 14 |15
16 L 17 118119 201 21 |22
23 ] 24 4251 26| 27| 28 {29
30 | 31

Liberty Elementary School District
Tentative 2023-2024 School Calendar

School Starts: August 8 (Min Day)
Back To School Night: August 31 (Min Day)
End of 1st Trimester: November 3
End of 2™ Trimester: March 1
End of 3rd Trimester: May 28
Parent Conferences: November 14-17
Christmas Program (Min Day)
Parent Conferences: March 20-22 (Min Day)
Open House: April 25 (Min Day)
8th Grade Graduation: May 30
School Ends/Water Day: May 31 (Min Day)

School Holidays (No School)
Labor Day: September 4 Fair Day: September 13
Teacher Inservice: October 9
Veteran’s Day: November 10 (observed)
Thanksgiving Break: November 20-24
Winter Break: December 18-January 3
Martin Luther King Jr: January 15
Lincoln's Birthday: February 12
President’s Day: February 19
Spring Break: March 25 - April 1

Memorial Day: May 27
Non-workday — All employees

Teacher Inservice: August 3-4
Welcome All Staff Back Inservice: August 7

September 6 / September 20
October 4
November 1
February 7/ February 21
April 3/ April 17
May 1

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9110 | 11 12113 14115
16, 171181191 20| 21 | 22
23124 [ 251 2627|2829




2021-2022 School Accountability Report Card
(Published During the 2022-2023 School Year)

General §%§§%’§*{i§§f§§§§ gmgt ‘ihegﬁhgé Accountability Report Card (SARC)

*é%ﬁ ngf rie /

2022 School Accountability Report Card

By February 1 of each year, every school in California.is. required by state law to

- publish @ School ‘Accountability. Report Card (SARC): The SARC contains

information about the condition and performance of each California public school.
Under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) ali-local educational agencies

(LEAs) are required to prepare.a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP),
_which'describes how they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils,
with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data
reportedin.an LCAP is to-be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

- For more information about SARC requirements and access to prior year reports;
see. the ~California. Department of  Education  (CDE). SARC web page at

tips:/iwww.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sal

For more information aboutthe LCFF or the LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page

_athitps://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aallc/

or additional information  about the school, parents/guardians and community

~ members should contact the school pringipal or the district office.

DataQuest is an online data ool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at

ttns://dg.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that' contains additional information about this
chool and comparisons of the school fo the district and the county: Specifically,
DataQuest is a dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g.; test
data, enroliment, high school graduates, dropouts; course enroliments, staffing,

‘and data regarding English learners).

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard)

_ hitps://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and
_continuous improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and
_schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student population. The
Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and
student groups on a set of state and local measures to assist in identifying

. strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.

_Internet access is available at public libraries and other locations that are publicly

accessible (e.g., the California State Library). Access fo the Internet-at libraries and

ubliclocations is generally provided on a first-come, first-served basis. Other use
estrictions may include the hours of operation, the length of time that a workstation
may be used (depending on-availability), the types of software programs available
ona workstation, and the ability to print documents;

Page 1 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




School Name Liberty Elementary School
Street 1771 East Pacific Ave.
City, State, Zip ' Tulare, CA 93274-1106
Phone Number o : (5659) 686-1675

Principal ' - Stesha Newkirk

Email Address. - - snewkirk@liberty.k12.ca.us
School Website hitps//libstivelementary,org
County-District-School (CDS) Code - 54719850000000

District Name : ~ Liberty Elementary School District
Phone N’umb'er ' - ' (559)686-1675

Superintendent - - ~'Dr. Deanna Cardoza
Email 'Addréss" .  dcardoza@liberty.k12.ca.us
District Website Address

- hites/libertyelementary.org

Liberty Elementary School is located midway between Fresno and Bakersfield, amid the central San Joaquin Valley, Liberty
was established-in 1867:to provide an education for students living on the outskirts of Visalia and Tulare, illustrating a 154-year
tradition in-the community. The school made a courageous move to-its new Pacific Avenue location in the summer of 2013,
after residing along Liberty Road and Mooney-Boulevard nearly 146 years. Liberty Elementary serves 793 students in
transitional kindergarten through eighth grade.

Liberty’s academic program includes: instruction in English Language Arts, Mathematics, Social Studies, Science, Physical
Education, Music and Band. In-addition to core instruction, students in grades TK-8 participate in technology, the arts
education, music, band, journalism, leadership, STEM, AVID, and an outdoor garden to engage, challenge, and support
student learning. Liberty provides an early child education for young students with a full-time preschool program, managed
through the Liberty Elementary Education Foundation: For working families who require childcare outside of school hours, the
Liberty Foundation also offers before and after school care for students in the Kids Club Program.

Our Vision:
Liberty Elementary School's vision is to prepare our students to assume responsibility to plan, design, and build the future by
providing a learning environment which is centered on students, directed by teachers, and supported by home and community.

Our Mission: '
The mission of Liberty Elementary School is to foster academic excellence and self-esteem by maintaining an exciting,
supportive environment for staff and students to work and leamn.

Liberty School Goals:
«  Ensure that students maximize their potential academically
« -~ Ensure students with a focused, comprehensive, rigorous, and-integrated curriculum
« Ensure a safe, nurturing environment that promotes growth, respect; and success
«  Ensure effective communication and partnerships among the students, staff, parents, and community
«  Ensure planning for present and future growth and facility expansion

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 2 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




About this School

Kindergarten
Grade1
Grade 2
Grade 3
Gra'c,le'4
Grade 5
Grade 6
Grade 7
Grade 8

TO?él,'Enrollmént,f" -

Fillpino.

Hispanic or Latino
Native Hawaiian or Paci
Two or More Races

White
English Lea'rﬁe/rsi
Foster Youth
Homeless

Mig réht

Students with Disabilities

So'cyioe,co'no,mical'l'yDiyéadvéntagued -

2022 School Accountability Report Card

Page 3 of 23

Liberty Elementary School




A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic
(Priority. 1):

o Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the
subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;

e - Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and
School facilities are maintained in good repair

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 4 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed
for Subject and Student Placement L 24.00

82.76 82.76 228366.10

83.12

(properly assigned) ,

Intern Credential Holders Properly 3.00 10.34 3.00 10.34 4205.90 153
Assigned

Teachers Without Credentials and

Misassignments (“ineffective” under 2.00 6.90 2.00 6.90 11216.70 4.08
ESSA) ,

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-

Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12115.80 441
Unknown 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18854.30 6.86
Total Teaching Positions 29.00 100.00 29.00 100.00 274759.10 100.00

Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned based on setling, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized to provide to students.

Credentlaled Teachers Asmgned Out-of-
Field (“out-of field” under ESSA) ~

Unknown

Total Teaching Positions -

2021-22 data was not included as part of the initial release of data on 1/13/23. The CDE has indicated that the data will be
available after the 2/1/23 SARC deadline. The data will be populated when it is published by the CDE.

Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time;
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that
an educator is authorized {o provide to students.

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 5 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




Permits and Waivers ' - 2.00

MlsaSS|gnments . . - . - ©0.00
Vacant Posmons ... o 0.00
Total Teachers Wlthout Gredentlals and MlsaSSIgnments . ' - 2:00

2021-22 data was not included as part of the initial release of data on 1/13/23. The CDE has indicated that the data will be
available after the 2/1/23 SARC deadline. The data will be populated when it is published by the CDE.

n a Permit or Waiver

Total OUt,-of-Field Teachers

2021-22 data was not included as part of the initial release of data on 1/13/23. The CDE has indicated that the data will be
available after the 2/1/23 SARC deadline. The data will be populated when it is published by the CDE.

: 'V'chyer,s::thet,ere'i

(a percentage of all the classes ta ht by teachers with no record of an
authorization to teach) ... -

2021-22 data was not included as part of the initial release of data on 1/13/23. The CDE has indicated that the data will be
available after the 2/1/23 SARC deadline. The data will be populated when it is published by the CDE.

Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at
i’itipt ’ifﬂﬁw,uji, ca, ﬁwié}dlef:/tﬁdeherefsusidéef nitiong asp.

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 6 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




Liberty Elementary -School District (LESD) sets a high priority upon ensuring there are sufficient textbooks and materials to
support the district's instructional programs. All textbooks and other classroom materials are purchased from the state-
approved textbook list that meets California grade-level content standards:

LESD has determined that each student has sufficient access to good quality textbooks and instructional materials pursuant to
the settlement of Williams vs. the State of California. All students, including undocumented students are provided with
individual standards-aligned textbooks and instructional materials in all core subjects. Textbooks and supplemental materials
are adopted according to a cycle developed by the California Department of Education, making the textbooks used in the
school the most current available. Materials approved for use by the State are reviewed by all teachers and a recommendation
is made to the Liberty Elementary School Board of Trustees by a selection.committee composed of teachers and
administrators. All recommended materials are available for parent examination in the Liberty School Library and are provided
with the opportunity to-give input prior to adoption.

Teachers are requested to report any deficiencies or shortage of textbooks to the principal; therefore textbooks can be
replaced or ordered if necessary. E-Rate funding provides the school with enough resources to purchase Meraki switches that
allow sufficient and reliable high-speed.internet connectivity.in all classrooms and school buildings. Each student in-.grade 1-8.is
assigned a Chromebook. TK/K students utilized iPads in the classroom. Liberty offers a computer lab in the library for students
o take assessments; do research, or complete assignments.

08/12/2021

Year and month in which the data were collected

California Collections, (K-8) HMH (2016}
_:Scholastic Readers (K-3)(2017)

Lexia Core5 Reading (K-8) (2019)

Reading A-Z (K-3)

XL Language Arts (K-6) (2018)

i-Ready ELA (K-8) (2011)

Go Math!, HMH (K-8) {2015)
What's My Place? What's My Value? Mathematics in the
. -Common Core (K-6) (2014)
- IXL Math (K-8)(2018)
_i‘Ready Math (K-8) (2011)

“Holt MeDougal - Science (K-5) (2001)
California HMH Science Dimensions (6-8)(2019)
XL Science (5, 8)) (2018)
STEMscopes (6-8) (2018)
~ Mystery Science (K-5) (2014)

Learn and Work, (Scott Foresman) (K-5) 2007

CA Social-Studies Weekly (K-5) (American Legacy
_ Publishing) (2021) ,
- IXL History-Social Studies (6-8) (2018)
Houghton Mifflin Harcourt (HMH) (6-8) (2020)

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




The district makes a great effort to ensure that safety and excellence are demonstrated in our commitment to provide well-
maintained, safe, and clean facilities for students and staff.

School site inspections are conducted on a regular basis to assess cleanliness, maintenance, and the safety of the campus.

During the 2022-2023 school year, the expansion of classrooms and programs within the District included the following:
s - Completion of a new ten-wing classroom building
¢ The use of additional classrooms for special education, a reading lab, counseling center, behavior support
classroom,; and the Liberty Foundation's Kids Club After Schoo! Program

The current growth in residential development near the surrounding area of Liberty School constitute an increase in student
enroliment. Liberty Elementary School District applied for state hardship funds to build ten new classrooms and conduct other
upgrades for future facility growth. The Liberty Elementary School Site is built upon a 21 acre parcel and houses 43
classrooms, a music room, a library, staff workroom, conference room, staff and student restrooms, administrative offices and a
multipurpose building. The design of the campus is laid out in a semicircle arrangement with the buildings surrounding the play
structure. There are large athletic fields to the south of the campus for students to run, play games, and enjoy seasonal sports.

Liberty School contracts a professional landscape company to maintain the grounds around campus by mowing, weeding,
fertilizing, and watering the play fields. A full-ime employee oversees regular routine maintenance, repairs, pest control,
transportation; and the overall operations of the school. Liberty also employees one full-time maintenance/custodial/bus driver
o keep our campus clean, buildings in working order, and make certain that our students riding the bus arrive to school and
return. home safely -We have part-time contracted custodial staff with a late afternoon shift to clean and sanitize classrooms
and buildings-after staff leave at the end of the school day. These key essential workers are responsible for cleaning,
vacuuming, mopping-and waxing the inside of all school buildings as well as conducting minor repairs:

Regular pest control operations including pesticide applications are ongoing. All such work is performed in strict accordance
with applicable regulations.

Ongoing assessment of site cleanliness is performed by the district's facilities. maintenance and custodial staff. This process
includes the evaluation of new cleaning products; equipment, and procedures.

Maintenance work is scheduled in accordance with health and safety issues taking the highest priority.

Year and month of the most recent FITrepot 08/12/2022

Systems:

Gas Leaks, Me«
Interior:
Interior Su’rfaCes -
Cleanliness: - o
Overall Cleanliness, PestNermln lnfe tat n': -
E!ectncal ' : -

Restrooms[Fountams -
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountams -

Safety: : o :
Fire Safety, Hazardous Matenals '

Structural;
Structural Damage Roofs

External:
Playground/Schoo‘ Grounds W’ndowsf
Doors/Gates/Fences

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 8 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 9 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




" -

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement
(Priority 4):

Statewide Assessments

(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven.
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities).

The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation
requirements:

1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three
through eight and grade eleven.

2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades
three through eight and grade eleven.

3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once
in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or fwelve).

4. College and Career Ready
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State
University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

SARC Reporting in the 2020-2021 School Year Only ,

Where the most viable option, LEAs were required to administer the statewide summative
assessment in ELA and mathematics. Where a statewide summative assessment was not
the most viable option for the LEA (or for one or more grade-level[s] within the LEA) due fo
the pandemic, LEAs were allowed to report results from a different assessment that met the
criteria established by the State Board of Education (SBE) on March 16, 2021. The
assessments were required to be:

e Aligned with CA CCSS for ELA and mathematics;

e Available fo students in grades 3 through 8, and grade 11; and
Uniformly administered across a grade, grade span, school, or district to all eligible
students.

Options

Note that the CAAs could only be administered in-person following health and safety
requirements. If it was not viable for the LEA to administer the CAAs in person with health
and safety guidelines in place, the LEA was directed to not administer the tests. There were
no other assessment options available for the CAAs. Schools administered the Smarter
Balanced Summative Assessments for ELA and mathematics, other assessments that meet
the SBE criteria, or a combination of both, and they could only choose one of the following:

¢ Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments;
Other assessments meeting the SBE criteria; or

e Combination of Smarter Balanced ELA and mathematics summative assessments
and other assessments.

The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the

requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University,
or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 10 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven
taking and completing a state-administered assessment,

The 2020-21 data cells have N/A values because these data are not comparable to other year data due to the COVID-19 pandemic
during the 2020-21 school year. Where the CAASPP assessments in ELA and/or mathematics is not the most viable option, the
LEAs were allowed to administer local assessments. Therefore, the 2020-21 data between school years for the school, district,
state are not an accurate comparison. As such, it is inappropriate to compare results of the 2020-21 school year to other school
years.

Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments.

English Language Arts/Lit
(grades 3-8 and 11)
Mathematics
(grades 3-8 and 11)

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking
and completing a state-administered assessment.

ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of
students who participated in both assessments.

Double dashes (-} appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however,
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement
| ; -

Two or More Races
White

dents _egéix’fihg Migran
Students with Disabiliti

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 12 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This tbl diplys C s res!s l ynt gro or students grades
and completing a state-administered assessment.

Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the
total number of students who participated in both assessments.

Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however,
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Students' , ,, ¢
Students with Disabilities - 12,50

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 13 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard.

For any 2020-21 data cells with N/T values indicate that this school did not test students using the CAASPP for Science.

Science . , : . 28.5
{grades 5, 8 and high school) '

This table displays CAASPP test resuits in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School. Double
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category

All Students

Foster Youth

Homeless

Students Recewmg Mlgrant;Edu ’

Students w:th Drsabthtles L

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 14 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education.

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness

Test Results. Due to changes to the 2021-22 PFT administration, only participation results are required for these five fitness

areas. Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (-—) appear in the table when the number of students tested is ten or
£ f

. srade 7
Grade 9

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement

The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site.

Liberty Elementary believes in the partnership of our parents and community fo support our student's education. We provide
many opportunities for our parents to have involvement in our learning community and leadership activities for parents. Our
parents are highly encouraged to attend monthly parent meetings including the Liberty Parent Teacher Club (LPTC), School
Site Council (38C) which is combined with our English Language Advisory Committee (ELAC) due to the low number of
students identified as Enghsh Language Learners. Informal feedback is gathered daily from teacher meetmgs or parent drop-in
meetings with the principal. Keeping parents informed and involved in advocacy and support groups, provides opportunities for
parents to share ideas, concerns, and ideas focused on education. We welcome parents to involve themselves in their child’s
education by volunteering in the classroom and/or at school. Parents are invited to assist in the classroom and become
involved in various school activities to include: the fall carnival, fundraising events, parades, the canned-food drive, dress up
days, and Red Ribbon Week. During a typical school year parents are encouraged to chaperone during class field trips and
volunteer in the school library.

Liberty conducts School Site Council meetings four or more times per year to discuss school plans, share information regarding
programs; curriculum, and events to enhance student engagement and achievement. Liberty parents are encouraged to take
an active role in their child's education through homework assignments and ongoing school (teacher) to home communication.
Liberty school is committed to communicating with and engaging parents as partners in their child’s education and learning. We
continue fo build the foundation for parent-teacher communication to promote academic achievement and to provide an
excellent learning environment through a team effort. Consistent communication between home and school ensures all
concerns are addressed in the best way possible;

Additional parent involvement opportunities include:
¢ Back-to-School Night and Open House
¢ Dr.-Seuss Week
o Parent Teacher Conferences Fall/Spring
e Campus improvement/garden beautification days

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 15 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




DG e G090 6 0 ¢ @

Character Counts - Liberty:Lion of the month assemblies
Fall Carnival

Book Fair

World Ag Expo Booth

Art Show

Fundraisers

Volunteering:in the classroom
Parent Teacher Club

Fieldtrip Chaperones

School garden work days
Other events

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 16 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate

The SARC provides ‘the following information relevant to the State priority: School
Climate (Priority 6):

e - Pupil suspension rates;
e Pupil expulsion rates; and
¢ - Other local measures on the sense of safety

This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The 2019-20 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to other year data because the
2019-20 school year is a partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any
comparisons in rates of suspensions and expulsions in the 2019-20 school year compared to other school years.

Suspensions 0.15
Expulsions 0000 0.00 0.05
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively.

Data collected during the 2020-21 school year may not be comparable to earlier years of this collection due to differences in
learning mode instruction in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Suspensions - ‘ 0.52 0.00 0.52 0.20
Expulsions . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 17 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




All Students
Female .
Male
American Indian

Liberty Elementary’s Safety Plan addresses student safety, emergency procedures, and school discipline policies. The School
Safety Plan is reviewed annually to ensure the plan is current and meets the requirement(s) of facility needs and ensure
student and staff safety. Our safety plan provides information outlining required actions and procedures for targeted areas and
designates those individuals with the skills required to conduct a specific job. In the event of a disaster on school campus,
student safety, discipline policy, and the emergency plan procedures are to be used by all staff. The safety plan contains
information provided by the California Safe Schools Assessment survey. Fire, lockdown and earthquake drilis are conducted on
aregular basis. '

Liberty Elementary School's Safety Committee are responsible for the development, evaluation, amendment, review, and
update of the site Comprehensive School Safety Plan by January 31 of each school year. A Crisis Response binder to include

the state-mandated comprehensive school safety planaligned to state requirements described in California Education Code
Section 35294 is available in the office. A School Disaster Preparedness Plan is also included in the safety plan outlining
disaster procedures, procedures for safe entry and exit movement of pupils, parents and school employees, strategies to
maintain a safe and orderly school environment, procedures for serious disciplinary problems a sexual harassment policy,
child-abuse reporting procedures, school dress code and school dlsmphne policies.

To maintain student safety adult supervns:on is provided in the classrooms dunng recess and lunch, and in all outside areas
before and after school. Under the direction of the superintendent or designee, specific school procedures are :mplemented by
the staff. One schoolwide disaster drill and monthly fire drills are conducted during the academic school year. All visitors are
required fo sign in at the front office and the campus is secured by locking all gates at the start of each school day. This
procedure ensures the safety and security of all students; and staff. At the end of the instructional day, students are required fo
wait within‘the school grounds until.a parent and/or-guardian arrives to pick them up.

The School Safety Plan is annually reviewed and approved by local law enforcement and the Board of Trustees. Updates to

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 18 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




the plan are completed by the administration and School Safety Committee.

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included.in the
state priorities for LCFF.

This table displays the 2019-20 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes

This table displays the 2020-21 average class siz cass ie is rlution, emns tit! “umer of Classes” indicates
how many classes fall info each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-grade level
classes.

3
3
3
4
3
3
3
1

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 19 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution. The columns titled “Number of Classes”
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class). The “Other” category is for multi-
rade level classes

00 T AT N G L i O

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor. One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working
full ti st 0 i

2021-22 School Accountability Report Card Page 20 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This table displays the expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.

$63,504

$66,472
2.1

$74,053

Percenthifféréhce,-SChogl Site and State : -11.6

On:an annual basis, Liberty Elementary School District (LESD) submits our applicafion for funding through the Consolidated
Application and Reporting System commonly called the Con App. The application is submitted in two (2) parts: Part |, includes
program and demographic information, submitted by June 30th of each year; and Part Ii, contains budget information and
program data submitted by January 31 of each year: The categorical programs included:

Title I, Part A, Improving Academic Achievement

Title I, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction

Title Ill- English Learner (EL), and Immigrant Programs

Title IV, Part A - Student Support and Academic Enrichment
ESSER, Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief

LCEF Funds Support:

¢ ‘New Teacher Support Systems (NTSS)
o Class Size Reduction (CSR)

¢ Insfructional Materials

= Educational Technology

Lottery Funds: ,
o Instructional Materials

Essentially, these funds are designed to assist students in mastering state standards. In addition to general state funding,
Liberty Elementary. School District receives state and federal categorical funding. Liberty Elementary School is commitied to
establishing a true partnership with all facets of the Tulare Learning Community. LESD appreciates and values all feedback
and parent/community input. Our parent groups make a positive difference in our school culture and.in the lives of the children
we'support:

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 21 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




This table displays the 2020-21 Teacher and Administrative salaries. For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at htip://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/

Beginning Teacher Salary . $50,989 $46,844
Mid-Range Teacher Salary ... 5 $69,428 $73,308
Highest Teacher Salary . . $96,636 $93,345
Average Principal Salary (Elementary) . $87,000 $116,457
Average Prin"cip'"Salary s . - $122,115

Average Pryinbipg'lysgiéfy”(ﬂlg’ , , o

Superintendent Salary .. $125,000 $136,206
t fo o | 30% 30%

4% 6%

Percent of Bu"dgyeyt for Teacherfsaia s

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 22 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




Our staff participate in many professional development opportunities throughout the school year. Effective, research-based
strategies; innovative teaching techniques; and applied technology in the classroom are all explored on staff development
days. On-site staff in-service; grade-level meetings and district staff development allow teachers the opportunity to learn and
collaborate.

The district's essential priorities for teaching and learning include: Provide First Best Instruction and Response to Intervention,
build a cultural of proficiency across grade levels to foster and sustain literacy improvement. We value the impact highly skilled
teachers have on student achievement. Three full-days of professional development before school begins, and monthly early
student release days, are reserved for the purpose of providing an additional 120 minutes of staff development for teachers.
Tulare County Office of Education Consultants (TCOE) provide specialized academic support for teachers in Reading, Math,
Writing, and Technology. In addition; teachers attend content-area specific training sessions during, or after the school day
throughout the school year.

Professional development initiatives focused on the premise of the following:
= ~Defining First Best Instruction through the Framework for Teaching and Learning
Data-responsive Instruction
Strategic/intensive Intervention
Curriculum/Strategies -~ Academic Vocabulary, Guided Reading, Reading Comprehension
Technology Integration {1:1 chrome books in core content areas)
NGSS Workshops
ELA grade-level curriculum development
Grade level teams develop common course curriculum maps and common assessments o efﬁclenﬂy measure and
monitor student achievement and re-teach accordmgly ,

Topics for staff deVelopment are determmed from collaboratlve discussions with teacher grade team meetings, and the yearly
teacherneeds assessment

The district focused all professional development activities around identified needs: first time best instruction, mastery learning;
multi-tiered system of supports, and implementation of the California Content Standards and NGSS Standards. Grade level
teams will continue their work with novel studies and units. Teachers received ongoing professmnal development opportunities
through the Small Schools Conference, consultation and training from TCOE academic specialists in: Guided Reading, Number
Talks, What's My Place? What's My Value? School-based coaching and training, and Social-Emotional Learning:

2022 School Accountability Report Card Page 23 of 23 Liberty Elementary School




LIBERTY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Superintendent — Memo

Meeting Date: February 14, 2023 Agenda Item 6.6

Subject: Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 2022

e Board Approval

Recommendation: Approval of the Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary
Block Grant.

Background/Rationale:

Governor Gavin Newsom approved AB 181. The bill established the Arts, Music, and Instructional
Materials (AMIM) Discretionary Block Grant. On September 27, 2022, Governor Newsom
approved AB 185, which revised the Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block
Grant. The Liberty Elementary School District anticipated receiving $472,601 (one-time) from the
state. These funds were allocated to school districts based on average daily attendance for grades
K-12 during the 2021-22 school year. Liberty ESD received one-half of the funds in December
2023. These funds are for five purposes enumerated in Section 134(a) of Chapter 52 of the Statutes
of 2022), which may be briefly summarized as: (1) obtaining standards-aligned professional
development and instructional materials for specified subject areas; (2) obtaining professional
development and instructional materials for improving school climate; (3) developing diverse,
culturally relevant and multilingual school library book collections; (4) operational costs,
including retirement and health care cost increases; and (5) COVID-19-related costs necessary to
keep pupils and staff safe and schools open for in-person instruction. These funds are available for
encumbrance through the 202526 fiscal year.

With the looming economic uncertainty and fears of recession, Gov. Gavin Newsom has proposed
cutting $1.2 billion of one-time discretionary funding for arts and instructional materials in his
pared-back 2023-24 state budget. This proposal will significantly reduce the amount of funding
the District will receive.




Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discrétionary Block Grant 2022
Expenditure Plan

LEA Name: Liberty Elementary School District

Contact Name: Deanna Cardoza, Ed.D.

Email Address: dcardoza@liberty.k12.ca.us

Phone Number: |(559) 686-1675

Total Amount of funds received by the LEA: |472,601

Date of adoption at a public meeting: 02/14/2023

AB 181 5ec, 134 AB 185 Sec, 56

{a) For the 2022-23 fiscal year, the sum of three billion five hundred sixty million eight hundred eighty-five thousand dollars
(53,560,885,000) is hereby appropriated from the General Fund to the State Department of Education to establish the Arts, Music,
and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant, for allocation to county offices of education, school districts, charter schools,
and the state special schools to:

(1) Obtain standards-aligned professional development and acquire instructional materials, in the following subject areas:
{A) Visual and performing arts.
(B) World languages.
(€) Mathematics.
(D) Science, including environmental literacy.
(E) English language arts, including early literacy.
(F) Ethnic studies.
(G} Financial literacy, including the content specified in Section 51284.5 of the Education Code.
(H) Media literacy.
(1) Computer science.
{J} History-social science.

K5 Schoél Arts éhd Music:

Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant lof5s 1/18/23




needed to sup
classes.

MATH: Instructional Materials/PD | 715,000| 25,000 40,000.00

Funds within this area will be used to
support the review, evaluation, and
purchase of new elementary math
curriculum.

COMPUTER LITERACY: Instructional 60,000 " 40,000 T 100,000.00
Materials/PD

We will use these funds to replace
many "end of life" Chromebooks in our
school and to maintain a 1:1 ratio of
students per device

Subtotal 135,000.00| 192,500.00| 0.00| 0.00| 327,500.00

(2) Obtain instructional materials and professional development aligned to best practices for improving school climate, including
training on deescalation and restorative justice strategies, asset-based pedagogies, antibias, transformative social-emotional
learning, media literacy, digital literacy, physical education, and learning through play.

Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 20f5 1/18/23




K-é;Phys'l,ca!;

Subtotal 0.00]  55,000.00 0.00| 0.00]  55,000.00

{3) Develop diverse book collections and obtain culturally relevant texts, including leveled texts, in both English and pupils’ home
languages, to support pupils’ independent reading. it is the intent of the Legislature that these book collections and culturally
relevant texts be used to provide support for pupils through the establishment of site-based school and classroom libraries that
are culturally relevant to pupils’ home and community experiences and be available in English, pupils’ home language, or a
combination of more than one language.

SuBtotal | 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00

{4) Operational costs, including but not limited, to retirement and health care cost increases.

Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 30f5 1/18/23




Subtotal 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00]  35,000.00

(5) As related to the COVID-19 pandemic, acquire personal protective equipment, masks, cleaning supplies, COVID-19 tests,
ventilation upgrades, and other similar expenditures, if they are necessary to keep pupils and staff safe from COVID-19 and
schools open for in-person instruction.

Subtotal " 45,000.00 "0.00 0.00] T0.00]  45,000.00

Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 40f6 1/18/23




Summary of Expenditures

472,500.00

{b) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall apportion funds proportionally to county offices of education, school districts,
charter schools, and the state special schools on the basis of an equal amount per unit of average daily attendance for kindergarten
and grades 1 to 12, inclusive, as those numbers were reported as of the second principal apportionment for the 2021-22 fiscal
year. The average daily attendance for each state special school shall be deemed to be 97 percent of the enrollment as reported in
the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System as of the 2021-22 Fall 1 Submission.

(c) Funding appropriated pursuant to this section shall be available for encumbrance through the 2025-26 fiscal year. Local
educational agencies are encouraged, but not required, to proportionally use resources received pursuant to this section for the
purposes noted in paragraphs (1) to {5), inclusive, of subdivision {a) and to support arts and music education programs.

(d) For purposes of this section, standards-aligned instructional materials includes, but is not limited to, books for school and
classroom libraries.

(e} The governing board or body of each school district, county office of education, or charter school receiving funds pursuant to this
section shall discuss and approve a plan for the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this section at a regularly scheduled public
meeting. It is the intent of the Legislature that each school district, county office of education, or charter school expend any
resources received pursuant to this section consistent with their governing board or body approved plan.

55,000.00
T
35,000.00
45,000.00
—
~ 472,500.00

‘Subtotal Section (4)
Suben SaaaRE

472,500.00

General Instructions
This example template is provided as a resource as one way to develop an expenditure plan for the Arts, Music, and Instructional
Materials Discretionary Block Grant of 2022, LEAs are cautioned to refer to AB 181, Sec. 134, (amended by AB 185, Sec. 56) for all
program requirements. Please verify all calculations/formulas before finalizing the plan.

Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant Sofs 1/18/23




LIBERTY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Superintendent — Memo

Meeting Date: February 14, 2023 Agenda ltem 6.6

Subject: Home-to-School Transportation Service Plan

e Board Approval

Recommendation: Approval of Home-to-School Transportation Service Plan.

Backeround/Rationale:

As a condition of receiving apportionments under Section 41850.1, a local educational agency
shall develop a plan describing the transportation services it will offer to its pupils, and how it will
prioritize planned transportation services for pupils in transitional kindergarten, kindergarten, and
any of grades 1 to 6, inclusive, and pupils who are low income. The plan shall be adopted by the
local educational agency’s governing board on or before April 1, 2023, and updated by April 1
each year thereafter.



€40 T @88d

- WINOA DUR USUDRUD SSBBIICY
: ,uu:umﬁ;go%.%o uopduossp Jsug ‘7

puE ‘S3MIIGesIp E_zwmm_.., 3&8 m__n_mmmuum oG pINom 181 mmutcmmﬂ,,,c,@,ﬂnmﬁmﬂmcmV

"DUIOY DALLIE |[IM JUBPNIS 212 MOy JOJ urid 2 9]RUIpL00D pue joouns o1 Buiuinias siauspnis

oyl 1243 uepienb/iusied s3uspnis syl SsIJ10U AIRISI09S [00YDS BUL TJOOUDS O) LINIS) PUe Sng oyl J2qus-a. (s)auspnis auw)
1841 senbad JSAD B3 “d03s 343 18 JINPR POZIIOYINE UR 995 JOUURD JBAD SNQ 243 I "peseeiad 9g 03 IUSPNIS & 10} JOALD
sng syl Ag 8igisia 8q 40 4o dodp sng Y3 e 8g isnui ueipdend Jo jusied e ‘Buigis Jepjo ue AQ peiusdulodne S| 1uspnis

Y3 SSejun "g8->iL sepedd Ul seiljeuoindenxs ym Suepnis JO sSpasu dinads auy) 19sW 03 sjoo0o3old peleubisep 10LIASIP SuL

"BOIAIDS UORRHIOdSURL] DAIJRUISYR UR SaJInbadt pue

UCI3BNYS SNDhIUN & SHGIYXS JUSPNIs B Ji 410 SNQ 2y 3P 03 9jgeun A|jedIsAyd 8g AW JUSPNIS B SBaJBUM S2OUBISWNDID 10
uonelodsuely JO suRsW IS0 @pIAoLd {|IM IDLISID BY L SasSNg palesado pue paumo 10LIASIp Buizijian SeoiAlss uonelodsues)
9944 PRJD40 alr 101ISIJ |00YDS Aleluswa|d Aladi] 9yl ul BuIpiSas S1USpnas |y 'SIuDpn1s spesu jepads pue isules)
Yysibug ‘sseipwioy ‘@WosUl-m0| 8pndUl 03 ‘g-31 SpeiB Ul SIUSPNIS {8 J0) SB0IAISS uonepodsuell 99.) Sepia0ld 1DUASIP SUL

: ; e , , , , o @E@uc MOp paR OyM sidnd
pue ‘saisnput ‘g 03 T mmUE@ %o >cm pue cmﬁm?mmcg cm% m@mncz mmcc_“ m:mb ul mm_%a 0] seoiades uoneyodsuen
@Nsﬁozg A3 >>o£ Ucm m_ n:a 8 Lm&o ::s a SODIAIDS c@@mtoamcg sy %o cma , umﬁ Sc> uo go 1Bch bmmc LmEm T

‘spidnd o3 sassed jisuriy 3802-0u Buipiaoad
wiody Acusbe jeucijeonpe |edo] e apnoadd jjeys uejd s,Aousbe jrUoIIRINPD je30] B i BuON ‘sidnd joouds
YyBiy pue jooyss PPl 01 UODSS SIYl 01 uensind 201A49s 2piaosd 03 WDIsSAs jsued) paumo Ajjediiuniu
B yum Jauried o3 Aduabe jeuoneonpe [edo) syl J0) spiaosd Aew uejd syj cjuswiwiod 2ngnd 230w
pue uosiad-ut 10} Ajjunjioddo syl Yyum Bunosw usdo ue Ul £707 ‘T IINdY 24089 40 uo Adusbe jruonednps
j2oo] 3yl jo pieoq Buiuisaob ayy Ag peoidope pue pajussasd 2q jjrys uejd 2yg sesiAles uoneliodsues]
ayy Buiquosep uejd e dojoasp jjeys Adcusbe [euopesnps [200] 2 ‘(T°0S8TY UOIDDS HF JOPUN) SIVIAIDS
uoeltodsurs ) 10j sjuswuoitodde Buialessl Jo uoRIpUOD B se ‘I'O086E u0ies (73) 9pon uoiEdINpPI J49d

€¢-¢20c
uejd S92IAIaS uonejlodsuel]

TOOHOS AYVLINIWITI ALYIAIT



£ Jo z o3ed

‘©Z0Z/¥T/20 uo
Play sbunesw pieoq oignd e Buunp uelq SediAJSS uonexModsuell au3 Buipiebel sisunied jeuonesnps si pebebus yI7 syl

&;ng o uonduosep Jeuz wi Iopjoysxels
c@u uonnjjod e mmuow ‘senuoyane
eu L ﬁmagmﬁ D mﬁ M%E ueid 33 v

seijied asoyy L3im uoney, :mcou
Jsupo Ucm mmﬁsa mucm‘_ma mﬁwbmﬁ ycmEm@mcmE A
Jsuen Mm,uom mmco_m@ Emem.EEsm koozum @msumg &Em vm SSep L W

"JOOYDS JBlie pue 240jeq ABD yoRS 1DLIASID BY3 Inoybnoiul s2anod Jisyl wuoiiad sesng (v
SN JDLISIP B UO S8DIAJSS uoneuodsued) s34} papiaodd sae ‘sidnd pajedidnpun Buipnpul 1013sSIp 341 Ut BUIAl S1USpms ||y

sudnd m% 03 3500
ou e :o@@ﬁogmcmb moo;um ol-swoy mwgmtm\,m SST00E 01 Bige 8g Eneé mz%g twgmu;%m:z MOY JO uondunsep Jsqug ¢

"JOOUDS 0] SOURISID 3|JBUOSESL B UM
SAIL A2U3 41 {O0LDS 01 PRIOASURL] 3 {[IM 1DLISIP BUI JO INC DBADLL OUM DUR 1DV 20URISISSY SSISLLICH OIUSA-ABULINMIN
[243D=y U] JBPUN SSIIRWOY SR AJlieND OyMm SIUBPNIS "[O0UDS W0} JG/pur 01 uoneuodsuell Buipiebsl mﬁm@g epads aney
ABU1 41 SIUBPNIS UM MJom 03 paubisse ale Jje1s pue 5@@@@& Se uonepodsuely poziRDads PBPIOYR 348 S3IGRSID BARY
OUM SIUBPNIS "SBLIBPUNOG ID1ASID [O0UDS au] ﬁo%z?g $31M04 SN SUNJ 101ISIP 84 "S$S8DIAJISS UOIRLIO @,; papiaoLd
24 [{IM UIN0A pUR S1UBPNIS SSBIBWOY pUR ‘senjigesip BV ﬁ;@@ 138 B8S0U) BUIpNDUl SIUBPNIS \fméw 213 ALBQIT 1Y




€20¢/¥T/20 uo pajussald

€ 40 £ 8ed

JOI=3POIMEDy T 0S8 L y=1

SOd=SpOOMEPR T Q0BG

T'0086€ Uo1139S (33} 2P0 UoHEINPT BILIOHIED

1S92JN0SOY

07 7 pady Baoseg a0 uo BY IS

) 31eq jeacaddy pieog y3q

sainypuadxy je10]

081N0 49430 1666/-000L

Aeping euded 16669-0009

saunjipuadxy 3unessdQ J9Y10 pue Sa0INISS (6665-000S

saljddng pue sj00g :6667-000Y

sjijeusy sahojdwy (666£-000E

SalIejeS POUISSED (666¢-000¢

sasn Supueuid J3YI0 pue sainpuadxs

{0000 324n0s53Y ‘0658 13IqQ) ssuemo))y uonelodsuer] 10}

00°LE0'TE

, H{ouoz
3¢ |jeys souemoljy uoiieniodsuel ] aul ‘o< 1) 44077 Wolj uo-ppy uopeuodsuel | ZZ-1Z0Z 5591 '3

092647

JUBLWIBSINGUIDY %09 PoI1BWHIST '

{009¢ uonpUNd “0GT/ ‘0TTL |80D) saunypuadx3 Asuadeuo sso7 D

(009€ uonoung ‘xxxg Palqo) Aeng jeude) ssa7 °g

00°966°LS

{009¢€ uoioun4) sesuadxy uopesodsuel] zz-170T 18301 Y

SUOIIRJNDjBY) SIUBMO|Y SIDIAISS uoneliodsues |



	Board Packet part 1 02.14.23.pdf
	Board Packet Part 2 02.14.23 (002) (002).pdf

